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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
 

Case Number: 5:18-cv-64 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

INFOCISION, INC., a Delaware 
corporation, 

Defendant. 

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES,
 
PERMANENT INJUNCTION, AND OTHER RELIEF
 

Plaintiff, the United States of America, acting upon notification and authorization to the 

Attorney General by the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”), pursuant to 

Section 16(a)(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 56(a)(1), for its 

complaint alleges: 

1. Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), and 16(a) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 56(a), and Section 6 of the Telemarketing 

and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 6105, to 

obtain monetary civil penalties, a permanent injunction, and other relief for Defendant’s 
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violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and the FTC’s Telemarketing Sales 

Rule (“TSR” or “Rule”), as amended, 16 C.F.R Part 310. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 56(a).  This action 

arises under 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

3. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)-(c) and 1395(a), and 

15 U.S.C. § 53(b).  Defendant resides and transacts business in this District. 

DEFENDANT 

4. Defendant, InfoCision, Inc. (“InfoCision”), is a for-profit Delaware corporation 

with its principal place of business at 325 Springside Drive, Akron, OH, 44333. InfoCision is a 

telemarketer that initiates outbound telephone calls on behalf of charitable organizations to 

induce consumers to make charitable contributions.  InfoCision transacts or has transacted 

business in this District and throughout the United States. 

5. At all times relevant to this Complaint, InfoCision has maintained a substantial 

course of trade or business in soliciting charitable contributions via the telephone, in or affecting 

commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

6. Congress directed the Commission to prescribe rules prohibiting abusive  and 

deceptive telemarketing  acts or practices pursuant to the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-

6108. The Commission adopted the original TSR in 1995, extensively  amended it in 2003, and 

amended certain provisions thereafter. 16 C.F.R. Part 310. 
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7. Section 1011 of the USA Patriot Act, codified in relevant part at 15 U.S.C. 

§§ 6102 and 6106, amended the Telemarketing Act to cover “charitable solicitations.” It 

directed the FTC to expand the scope of the TSR to cover calls made to solicit charitable 

contributions. In 2002, the FTC amended the TSR to modify the definition of telemarketing to 

(1) include interstate calls made by for-profit telemarketers to solicit charitable contributions, (2) 

require for-profit telemarketers calling to solicit such contributions to promptly disclose the 

name of the organization making the request and that the purpose of the call is to ask for a 

charitable contribution, and (3) prohibit for-profit telemarketers from making a false or 

misleading statement to induce any person to make a charitable contribution. These 

requirements ensure that for-profit telemarketers that solicit charitable contributions are truthful 

about the purpose of the call and that consumers receive material information so that they can 

make informed choices about whether to engage with the telemarketers and give a charitable 

contribution. 

8. Under the TSR, a “telemarketer” means “any person who, in connection with 

telemarketing, initiates or receives telephone calls to or from a customer or donor.” 16 C.F.R. § 

310.2(ff). A “donor” means “any person solicited to make a charitable contribution,” 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.2(p), and a “charitable contribution” means “any donation or gift of money or any other 

thing of value.” 16 C.F.R. § 310.2(h). 

9. Under the TSR, an “outbound” telephone call means “a telephone call initiated by 

a telemarketer to induce the purchase of goods or services or to solicit a charitable contribution.” 

16 C.F.R. § 310.2(x). 
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10. The TSR prohibits telemarketers from “[m]aking . . . false or misleading 

statement[s] to induce any person to pay for goods or services or to induce a charitable 

contribution.” 16 C.F.R § 310.3(a)(4). 

11. Pursuant to Section 3(c) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6102(c), and 

Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57a(d)(3), a violation of the TSR constitutes an 

unfair or deceptive act or practice in or affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

DEFENDANT’S BUSINESS PRACTICES 

12. InfoCision is a “telemarketer” engaged in “telemarketing” as those terms are 

defined in the TSR. 

13. InfoCision initiates outbound telephone calls to consumers in the United States to 

induce consumers to make charitable contributions to hundreds of various charitable 

organizations. 

14. InfoCision has engaged in telemarketing by a plan, program, or campaign 

conducted to induce consumers to make charitable contributions to these charitable organizations 

by the use of one or more telephones and which involves more than one interstate telephone call. 

15. Since at least 2013, InfoCision has conducted hundreds of telemarketing 

campaigns on behalf of these charitable organizations, involving millions of telephone calls to 

consumers. 

16. In some of these telemarketing campaigns, InfoCision’s telemarketers called 

consumers and told them at the beginning of the call that the purpose of the call was not to ask 

for a donation. In such calls, InfoCision’s telemarketers subsequently asked consumers to mail 
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or hand-deliver to family, friends, or neighbors materials asking for monetary donations on 

behalf the charitable organization.  In numerous instances in those same calls, contrary to 

InfoCision’s initial representations and claims, InfoCision’s telemarketers also asked consumers 

to make a monetary donation, often in amounts of $10, $25, or $50.  

VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE
 

Count I
 

False or Misleading Statements to Induce a Charitable Contribution
 

17. As described in Paragraphs 12 through 16 above, in numerous instances in 

connection with telemarketing, Defendant has made, or caused others to make, false and 

misleading statements in outbound telephone calls to consumers to induce a charitable 

contribution in violation of the TSR.  16 C.F.R § 310.3(a)(4). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

18. Consumers in the United States have suffered and will suffer injury as a result of 

Defendant’s violations of the TSR.  Absent injunctive relief by this Court, Defendant is likely to 

continue to injure consumers and harm the public interest. 

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

19. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and other ancillary relief to prevent and remedy any violation of any provision of law 

enforced by the FTC. 

20. Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A), as modified by 

Section 4 of the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as 

amended, and as implemented by 16 C.F.R. § 1.98(d), authorizes this Court to award monetary 
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civil penalties. In 2013, the Court was authorized to award a penalty of not more than $16,000 

for each violation of the TSR. See 16 C.F.R. § 1.98(d) (2009).  The maximum penalty amount 

was adjusted to $40,000 per violation as of August 1, 2016, and further adjusted to $40,654 per 

violation as of January 24, 2017, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act 

Improvements Act of 2015, Pub. L. 114-74 § 701 (further amending the Federal Civil Penalties 

Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990), and 16 C.F.R. § 1.98, 81 Fed. Reg. 42,476 (June 30, 2016); 

82 Fed. Reg. 8135 (January 24, 2017). 

21. Defendant’s violations of the TSR were committed with the knowledge required 

by Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A). 

22. This Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief 

to remedy injury caused by Defendant’s violations of the TSR and the FTC Act. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized by Sections 5(a), 

5(m)(1)(A), and 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), and 53(b), and pursuant 

to its own equitable powers: 

A. Enter judgment against Defendant and in favor of Plaintiff for each violation 

alleged in this complaint; 

B. Award Plaintiff monetary civil penalties from the Defendant for every violation of 

the TSR; 

C. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the TSR and the FTC 

Act by Defendant; and 
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D. Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and 

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

FOR THE FEDERAL  TRADE 
COMMISSION: 
CHARLES A. HARWOOD 
Regional Director 
Northwest Region 

TINA E. KONDO 
Assistant Regional Director 
Northwest Region 

NADINE S. SAMTER 
SARAH A. SHIFLEY 
Attorneys 
Northwest Region 
Federal Trade Commission 
915 Second Avenue, Suite 2896 
Seattle, WA  98174 
(206) 220-6350 (voice) 
(206) 220-6366 (fax) 
nsamter@ftc.gov 
sshifley@ftc.gov 

FOR PLAINTIFF  
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA: 
CHAD A. READLER 
Acting Assistant Attorney  General 
Civil Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 

ETHAN DAVIS 
Deputy  Assistant Attorney  General 
Civil Division 

GUSTAV W. EYLER 
Acting Director 
Consumer Protection Branch 

By: s/ Kathryn A. Schmidt_________ 
KATHRYN A. SCHMIDT 
Trial Attorney 
Consumer Protection Branch 
450 Fifth Street NW, 6th Floor South 
Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 598-8697 (voice) 
(202) 514-8742 (fax) 
kathryn.a.schmidt@usdoj.gov 

JUSTIN E.  HERDMAN 
United States Attorney 

MICHELLE L.  HEYER (0065723) 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
801 West Superior Avenue, Suite 400 
Cleveland OH 44113 
(216) 622-3686 (voice) 
(216) 522-2404 (fax) 
michelle.heyer@usdoj.gov 

Dated:  January 10, 2018 
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